

Minutes of the special meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin: July 13, 1940. 1940

Madison, Wisconsin: Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, 1940

https://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/NYITTKATNEHKR8H

Copyright 2008 Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System

The libraries provide public access to a wide range of material, including online exhibits, digitized collections, archival finding aids, our catalog, online articles, and a growing range of materials in many media.

When possible, we provide rights information in catalog records, finding aids, and other metadata that accompanies collections or items. However, it is always the user's obligation to evaluate copyright and rights issues in light of their own use.

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS

Madison, Wisconsin

Saturday, July 13, 1940, 11:45 A.M.

President Glover presiding

PRESENT: Regents Callahan, Cleary, Ekern, Glover, Holmes, Kleczka, Vergeront, Werner.

ABSENT: Regents Hodgkins, Sensenbrenner.

Communications were presented from Regents Hodgkins and Sensenbrenner in explanation of their absence.

President Glover stated that this meeting was called because of the communication received from Governor Heil under date of July 2, 1940, and requested Regent Werner to present to the Board a proposed communication to the Governor. Regent Werner read the following letter and moved that it be approved by the Board:

"Dear Governor Heil.

Your letter of July 2 in which you suggest that the Board of Regents consider the advisability of preventing students with "obnoxious minds" from registering at the University of Wisconsin is received. You suggest further that the president of the University be directed to determine how many if any of the faculty are teaching "the gospel of Communism and its affiliates". The Board has given careful consideration to your letter. We believe the suggestion made will help to direct the attention of the faculty and the students to giving more consideration to the real value of democracy and the methods of improving our democratic government. The Board believes that the people of the State, the faculty and the students are overwhelmingly loyal to the principle that a democracy is the ideal form of government for a civilized people. We would call your attention to the important program of citizenship training which originated at the University of Wisconsin and is now spreading rapidly to all states throughout the nation. Wisconsin was the one University in the land which celebrated citizenship day during the year. These citizenship programs bring to the people of the nation a better understanding of our form of government

and emphasize to them their responsibility as citizens of our mation. It is a high compliment to our faculty that such a program was initiated by our University.

Those students who are impressed with other forms of government may well to their advantage and to that of the nation be exposed to the program of American education conducted at the University. The question of political and religious tests for admission to the University is covered by Section 36.06 of the Statutes which reads as follows: "no sectarian or partisan tests shall ever be allowed or exercised in the university, or in the admission of students thereto or for any purpose whatever". The Regents are bound by this Statute. They assure you, however, that disloyal acts of students or faculty are not and will not be countenanced. They will be promptly reported to the proper legal authority for action. The Board appeals to all Wisconsin citizens to aid at this time in maintaining faith in our American institutions. It gladly reiterates its faith in the statement of the Board of Regents made in 1894 that here at Wisconsin we "should ever encourage that continual sifting and winnowing by which alone the truth can be found".

The Board will be glad to confer with you at any time and discuss procedure and programs which will strengthen American principles among our people. We trust that the conclusions of the Board will meet with your hearty approval.

With best wishes, we are

Sincerely yours,

The Board of Regents

By (Sgd.) A. J. Glover
President."

Regent Werner's motion was seconded by Regent Callahan and carried unanimously.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE PRESIDENT

- Comptroller -

1. That upon the recommendation of Professor Henry R. Trumbower the cooperative agreement between the University and the Public Roads Administration, Federal Works Agency, for cooperative studies of state, county, township and municipal taxes for highways and the relationship

between road and general property taxes in the various states be approved for the period July 1, 1940 to June 30, 1941, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement for the University. (Confirming approval by the Executive Committee).

Adopted.

2. That the Comptroller be authorized to sign an agreement with the Linde Air Products Company, Milwaukee; Wisconsin, to lease to the Linde Air Products Company an area of land in the Service Building block approximately 20 feet by 43 feet, without rental, for the purpose of installing a "Cascade" oxygen unit to supply oxygen to the State of Wisconsin General Hospital and associated units.

Adopted.

- Physical Education - Women -

1. That Mrs. Helen Dobson Denniston, associate professor of physical education - women, be granted leave of absence for the second semester of 1940-41, on summer session basis.

Adopted.

- Military Science - .

1. That Carl E. Driggers be appointed associate professor of military science and tactics for the year 1940-41; salary \$286 for the year; vice Nelson.

Adopted.

- Letters and Science -

- 1. That the salary of Raymond G. Herb, associate professor of physics for the year 1940-41, \$3,250, 12 months' basis, be charged as follows: \frac{1}{2} to Letters and Science, p. 51, \frac{1}{2} to research, RF: Prof.(2).

 Adopted.
- 2. That the salary of John W. Williams, professor of chemistry for the year 1940-41, \$4,750, 12 months' basis, be charged as follows: ½ to Letters and Science, p. 43, ½ to research RF: Prof. (4).

 Adopted.

- 3. That C. K. Leith, professor of geology, be granted leave of absence for the academic year 1940-41, without salary.

 Adopted.
- 4. That Harry Glicksman, junior dean of the College of Letters and Science, be appointed for summer service, 1940, at a salary of \$500; to be charged to balance in Williams salary item.

 Adopted.

- Agriculture -

- l. That the salary of Perry W. Wilson, associate professor of agricultural bacteriology for the year 1940-41, \$3,800, 12 months' basis, be charged as follows: ½ to agriculture (\$1584, p. 102, \$316 to \$755 item, p. 85) and ½ to research RF:Prof.(1).

 Adopted.
- 2. That the lease of the Piehl Farm, near Three Lakes, Oneida County, for potato research be approved, the rent to be charged to the 3T fund.

 Adopted. Contract No 129 Agr. August.

- Engineering -

1. That Lloyd Forrest Rader be appointed professor of civil engineering for the academic year 1940-41; salary \$4,250 per annum; charge to vice Janda, p. 153, fund 1A.

Adopted.

- Extension -

1. That Hilmer Carl Krueger, associate professor of history, Milwaukee Center, be granted leave of absence for the academic year 1940-41, without salary.

Adopted.

- Graduate School -

1. That Harold Stoke be appointed professor of political science and assistant dean of the graduate school at a salary of \$5250 for the academic year 1940-41; charge \$2625 to 1A Graduate School, vice Corey, \$1800 to 1A Political Science and \$475 to 1A History (Harrington). \$350 to 2.7 \$. Admin. Adopted.

- Gifts and Grants -

- 1. That the following gifts and grants be approved:
 - (1) \$2,747.94 U. W. Physical Education Alumnae Association, Ruth Glassow, Secretary; to be deposited in scholarship trust fund as the beginning of the establishment of the Blanche M. Trilling Scholarship of \$10,000; scholarship award to be made to a graduate woman student in physical education.
 - (2) 150.00 University League for two cash scholarships for women students in 1940-41.
 - (3) 29.00 Myron Harshaw, to be added to his scholarship fund, Conations
 (4) 35.00 Fond du Lac Chapter of the American Association of University Women, for equipment, Elizabeth Waters Hall.
 - (5) 22,500.00 Rockefeller Foundation, for researches in agricultural bacteriology, under the direction of Perry W. Wilson; over a five year period, July 1, 1940 to June 30, 1945; amount available in any one year not to exceed \$4,500.
 - (6) 1,600.00 Renewal industrial fellowship in biochemistry,
 Wilson & Co., Inc., September 1, 1940 August 31,
 1941, and that the Comptroller be authorized to
 sign the agreement.
- (7) 525.00 The Dow Chemical Co., Midland, Michigan, for the establishment of an industrial fellowship for study of insecticides under the supervision of the department of economic entomology, from June 17 to November 1, 1940, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
 - (8) 1,150.00 Field Seed Institute of North America, industrial fellowship for the study of agricultural seeds, for 12 months, beginning September 15, 1940, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
 - (9) 5,000.00 Lever Bros. Company, Cambridge, Massachusetts, renewal of industrial fellowship for study of animal ration, for the fiscal year 1940-41, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

- (10) \$5,000.00 George M. Moffett, Queenstown, Maryland, for the establishment of an industrial fellowship in dairy husbandry, under the supervision of Professor E. E. Heizer; \$1,000 a year for five-year period, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
- (11) 1,250.00 Commercial Solvents Corporation, for continuation of industrial fellowship in biochemistry, under the direction of Professor Elvehjem, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
- (12) 600.00 Universal Oil Products Company, Thicago, for establishment of a fellowship in chemical engineering for research in the chemical kinetics involved in the hydrogenation of iso-octene and iso-octane during the year 1940-41, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
 - (13) 20,000.00 Bequest in Will of Sigurd Louis Odegard for "The Sigurd L. Odegard Memorial Educational Fund" given in memory of his parents, Olaus P. Odegard and Helle Nilson Odegard. (Extract from will attached.)

(14) 500.00 - from an anonymous donor for Cancer Research under supervision of Dr. Guyer.

Adopted. Medentification
on gill

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was VOTED, That the recommendations of the President listed under Comptroller, Physical Education - Women, Military Science, Letters and Science, Agriculture, Engineering, Extension, Graduate School and Gifts and Grants be approved.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was VOTED, That the actions taken by the President since the June 15, 1940, meeting of the Board, as sent out to the Regents, be approved and made a part of the record of this meeting.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Callahan, the following resolution was adopted:

WHEREAS it has been proposed that there be established under the auspices of and for the benefit of thirteen Midwestern universities (namely, University of Indiana, Iowa State College, Michigan State College, Northwestern University, Ohio State University, Purdue University, State University of Iowa, University of Chicago, University of Illinois. University of Kentucky, University of Michigan,

University of Minnesota, University of Wisconsin) a storage and distribution center for little used library books, and

WHEREAS the location, participation, basis of financing, and type of organization of the proposed storage center are to be determined, and

WHEREAS funds must be sought to study this project from persons or corporations who may wish to know the attitude of the governing boards concerning it

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this Board endorse in principal the proposal to establish such a storage center, and that it hereby indicate its willingness to participate in such an enterprise insofar as it is legally permitted so to do, on the understanding that no present financial commitments are incurred by this action.

President Dykstra read a statement regarding military training and referred to the appointment of a University Research Committee in connection with national defense.

At the meeting of the Board held on May 11, 1940, a gift of \$\frac{1000}{200}\$ was accepted from an anonymous donor for Law School Scholarships. Upon recommendation of Dean Garrison and upon motion of Regent Holmes, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was

VOTED, That the following regulations be approved for the operation of the fund:

That the fund be invested with other University trust funds and the income awarded annually by the faculty of the Law School to some outstanding student on the basis of scholarship, need and contribution to the life of the school, such as editorial work on the Wisconsin Law Review; the selection to be made each year from among the second year law students and the scholarship to be paid at or after the commencement of the recipient's third year in a single sum or in installments, as the faculty may determine.

At 12:45 P.M. the mooting

ADJOURNED.

M. E. McCaffrey,

Secretary.

ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

Since the June 15, 1940 meeting of the Board of Regents

RESIGNATIONS:

- 1. Ellen M. Carlson, instructor in home economics extension, June 30, 1940.
- 2. Lavina Niehaus, instructor in physical education women, June 30, 1940.
- 3. Robert Trumpy, assistant in dairy plant, June 30, 1940.
- 4. Orville Wyss, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, beginning of the academic year 1940-41.
- 5. Edwin M. Foster, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, beginning of the academic year 1940-41.
- 6. Rgeinald Haskins, research assistant in botany, July 1, 1940.
- 7. Oswald Sydney Orth, research assistant in physiology, for the summer of 1940.
- 8. Alice K. Pierick, assistant in genetics, June 13, 1940.
- 9. Alvin J. Dirksen, research assistant in limnology, July and August 1940.
- 10. Melvin Haferbecker, fieldman in dairy husbandry, June 1, 1940.
- 11. Frank Shumate Fawcett, W.A.R.F. scholar in biochemistry, beginning of the academic year 1940-41.
 - 12. Lawrence Halprin, assistant in horticulture, July 1, 1940.
 - 13. Lawrence G. Monthey, assistant in soils, July 1, 1940.
 - 14. Donald P. White, research assistant in soils, July 1, 1940.
 - 15. Neal D. Crane, research assistant in physics, July and August 1940.
 - 16. Edwin M. Hanson, technical assistant in chemistry, July and August 1940.

RESIGNATIONS:

- λ 17. Morris A. Lipton, post-doctorate fellow in biochemistry, July 1, 1940.
 - 18. Harvey C. Slocum, senior resident in anesthesia, June 30, 1940.

Jellow

19. Roger A. Moon, junior resident in medicine, July 1, 1940.

- 1. Frederick J. Pohle, assistant professor of medicine for the year 1940-41, at \$2700 per annum, ½ charged to hospital, residents, internes and teachers, 10-A, ½ to research RF:Prof.(3).
- 2. John W. M. Rothney, assistant professor of education, appointed director of the graduate laboratory seminary or teachers work—shop in elementary education, at Shorewood, Wisconsin, to receive the fees from enrollment, total not to exceed \$525, 6 weeks, June 24 to August 2, 1940.
- 3. Helen Pearson, instructor in home economics extension for the academic year 1940-41, at \$2400 per annum.
- 4. Arthur J. Macht, instructor in neuropsychiatry, department of student health, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$2000 per annum.
- 5. Henry Samuel Heimonen, instructor in geography, for the academic year 1940-41, at \$1800 per annum.
- 6. Alvin Schwendiman, instructor in agronomy, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$108.33. Standard agr Chem.
- 7. The following persons appointed instructors in the extension division for the academic year 1940-41:

Leon Battig	Mathematics	\$2,000
Albert Emil May	Mathematics	1,900
John William Culver	History	1,900
Charles L. Monroe	History	1,900
Herbert John Wood	History	1,900
Kenneth M. Stampp	History	1,800
Robert W. Finley	Geography (2/3)	1,267
Wilbur M. Hanley	Geography (1/2)	950
Paul William Icke	Geography	1,900
Josephine Wheeler Rents	Spanish and French	1,900
Norman James Azpell	Spanish and French	1,800
Florence Stehn Reynolds	French	1,800
Chloe Elizabeth Tilden	English, Spanish & German	1,900
Katherine Way McMullen	English and German	1,900
James Duff	English	1,900
William Howard Dawe	English	1,800
Margaret Isobel Pope	English	1,900
Hjalmar Storlie	English	1,900
Zea Zinn	English	1,900
John Kenneth Evers	English	1,900.

- 8. Shirlee Dodge, instructor in physical education women, for the academic year 1940-41, at \$1,600.
- 9. Lynn E. Baker, instructor in psychology, Milwaukee center, month of July 1940, at \$81.00.
- 10. Ralph V. Jackson, instructor in French and Italian, academic year 1940-41, at \$1,700.
- 11. Wilbur L. Mitchell, instructor in mathematics, Milwaukee center, academic year 1940-41, at \$1,800.
- 12. Edwin Michael Foster, instructor in agricultural bacteriology, academic year 1940-41, at \$1,800.
- 13. Viola I. Mauseth, assistant librarian (rank of instructor), beginning August 1, 1940, at \$1800 per annum.
- 14. Flossie Budewig, acting instructor at Wisconsin High School and in the department of educational methods, academic year 1940-41, at \$2,200 per annum.
- 15. Winston Marvel Manning, research associate in limnology for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$2,820 per annum.
- 16. Beth Morell, computer (Hollerith machine), academic year 1940-41, at \$300.
- 17. Kenneth N. Wedin, assistant in agronomy, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$160.
- 18. Robert R. Spitzer, assistant in agronomy, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$140.
- 19. Jesse M. Scholl, assistant in agronomy, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$140.
- 20. Edwin M. Hansen, technical assistant in agricultural bacteriology, July and August 1940, at \$150.
- 21. George P. Bahler, research assistant in biochemistry, July and August 1940, at \$120.
- 22. Colin Monroe Hudson, research assistant in physics, summer of 1940, at \$120.
- 23. Rozell Marie Rork, assistant in social education, Wisconsin Union, summer of 1940, at \$75.00.

- 24. H. Rodney Dodge, assistant in economic entomology, June 17 to 29, 1940, at \$36.00, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$150.
- 25. Harold H. Pryse, assistant in genetics, June 18 to 29, 1940, at \$33.00.
- 26. Maurice H. Meshew, assistant in poultry husbandry, June 24 to August 2, 1940, at \$150.
- 27. Philip M. Raup, assistant in agricultural economics, July 1 to September 15, 1940, at \$75.00.
- 28. Arthur J. Walrath, assistant in agricultural economics, July 1 to September 15, 1940, at \$75.00.
- 29. Earle Landry Reynolds, /assistant in sociology and anthropology, academic year 1940-41, at \$600.
- 30. Frederick M. Granberg, research assistant in limnology, July and August 1940, at \$150.
- 31. Burton MacLynn Smith, graduate assistant in education, academic year 1940-41, at \$450.
- 32. Allan Donald Bartelt, graduate assistant in education, academic year 1940-41, at \$400.
- 33. Clifford Stanley Liddle, graduate assistant in education, academic year 1940-41, at \$700.
- 34. Marvin Julius Ottilie, graduate assistant in education, academic year 1940-41, at \$450.
- 35. Phil C. Lange, graduate assistant in education, academic year 1940-41, at \$400.
- 36. Mary Frances Gates, graduate assistant in education, academic year 1940-41, at \$400.
- 37. George Gordon Ellis, graduate assistant in education, academic year 1940-41, at \$450.
- 38. Lawrence Marion Richards, research assistant in chemistry, fiscal year 1940-41, at \$720.
- 39. James Wiltse Davis, research assistant in chemistry, fiscal year 1940-41, at \$720.

- 40. Clifford William Hesseltine, research assistant in botany, fiscal year 1940-41, at \$720.
- 41. Raymond W. Larson, assistant in dairy plant, fiscal year 1940-41, at \$1200.
- 42. Orville Wyss, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, July and August 1940, at \$120.
- 43. Michael Hendrix Langford, research assistant in plant pathology, July and August 1940, at \$150.
- 44. Henry Joseph Nicholes, research assistant in physiology, July and August 1940, at \$120.
- 45. Margaret Halbert Wright, research assistant in medicine, 3 weeks, beginning June 10, 1940, at \$60.
- 46. Norman Charles Johnson, research assistant in medicine, academic year 1940-41, at \$1,000.
- 47. Kermit C. Berger, assistant in soils, July 1 to September 30, 1940, at \$375.
- 48. Wayne W. Weber, assistant in horticulture, fiscal year 1940-41, at \$750.
- 49. Gertrude Heilman, assistant in agricultural economics, June 15 to 30, 1940, at \$37.50.
- 50. Charles Kenneth Whitehair, assistant in veterinary science, June 13 to 30, 1940, at \$90, and for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$1800.
- 51. Robert H. Burris, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$200.
- 52. Joe B. Wilson, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$120.
- 53. Esther Anne Tennant, assistant in clinical medicine, fiscal year 1940-41, at \$1200.
- 54. Bonald L. Snow, research assistant in civil engineering, summer of 1940, at \$250.

- 55. Jesse C. Dietz, Jr., research assistant in civil engineering, summer of 1940, at \$250.
- 56. Gerard A. Rohlich, research assistant in civil engineering, summer of 1940, at \$100.
- 57. Melvin J. Noth, research assistant in civil engineering, summer of 1940, at \$300, research fellow in civil engineering, academic year 1940-41, at \$600.
- 58. Truman Kohman, research assistant in cancer research, July and August 1940, at \$70.
- 59. Orrin Zebarth, research assistant in cancer research, July and August 1940, at \$120.
- 60. Richard J. Roew, research assistant in cancer research, July and August 1940, at \$120.
- 61. Carl Eugene Johnson, research assistant in cancer research, 10 months, beginning September 1, 1940, at \$800.
- 62. W. Vernon Lee, research assistant in physiology, July and August 1940, at \$120.
- 63. Oswald Sydney Orth, research assistant in physiology, July and August 1940, at \$200.
- 64. Eleanor Marie Larsen, graduate assistant in physiology, academic year 1940-41, at \$400.
- 65. Theodore S. Holstein, assistant in economics, July and August 1940, at \$200.
- 66. Norman O. Brown, research assistant in sociology, academic year 1940-41, at \$600.
- 67. Alene Seymour Little, technical assistant in the Wisconsin press, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$125 a month.
- 68. Ralph Sapp, assistant in chemistry, Milwaukee Center, academic year 1940-41, at \$950.
- 69. Primrose Watters, research assistant in English, June 6 to 30, 1940, at \$40.

- 70. Alexander Kern, research assistant in English, June 6 to 30, 1940, at \$100.
- 71. Edwin Michael Foster, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, July 1 to September 1, 1940, at \$300.
- 72. Richard Max Shackelford, assistant in genetics, fiscal year 1940-41, at \$720.
- 73. John Carl Sylvester, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, academic year 1940-41, at \$600.
- 74. Robert S. Hutton, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, academic year 1940-41, at \$600.
- 75. Charles B. Drewry, county agricultural agent for Marinette County, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$1900 per annum.
- 76. Earl A. Polley, county agricultural adjustment agent for Racine County, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$1200 per annum.
- 77. Armin Frederick Meyer, county club agent for Washington County from July 1 to September 1, 1940, at \$180.
- 78. Lewis E. Drake appointed to read correspondence study papers in psychology courses on a fee basis, total not to exceed \$300, during July and August 1940.
- 79. George G. Town appointed to grade correspondence study papers in chemistry courses on a fee basis, total not to exceed \$450, during July and August 1940.
- 80. Kathrin M. Tufts appointed to grade correspondence study papers in Spanish courses on a fee basis, total not to exceed \$150, during July and August 1940.
- 81. Sam Slifkin appointed for special summer services in the chemistry department, Milwaukee Center, during July and August, at \$90 a month.
- 82. Frank J. Klier, teacher of German (half-time) for the academic year 1940-41, at \$1200 per annum, at Wisconsin High School.
- 83. John Taylor Eastlick, teacher-librarian at Tisconsin High School for the academic year 1940-41, at \$2100.
- 84. Alexander Yale Kroff, teacher of French at Wisconsin High School (1/4 time), for the academic year 1940-41, at \$500.

- 85. Appointment of 27 lecturers and secretary for the Elementary Principals' Conference, July 6-9, 1940, total \$1800; charge to fees.
- 86. The following persons appointed to teach in the Graduate Laboratory Seminary or teachers workship in elementary education, Shorewood, Wisconsin, six weeks, June 24 to August 2, 1940, to receive the fees from enrollment, total not to exceed amount shown below:

Dorothy Forler	\$250.00
Donald Berger	250.00
Alice Fickinger	250.00
Candace McDowell	450.00.

87. The following persons appointed to teach the ground school course (C.A.A. program), 24 class meetings each during the summer of 1940, at \$360 each:

Thorpe Langley
William F. Hurtgen
Raymond M. Rightsell

Superior State Teachers College LnCrosse State Teachers College Stevens Point State Teachers College.

- 88. Frederick L. Caudle appointed to teach a course in meteorology, air navigation and civil air regulations radio uses and forms, in Milwaukee, 12 meetings, beginning June 17, 1940, at \$120, also to teach the ground school courses (C.A.A. program) at Oshkosh and Madison, 24 class meetings, summer of 1940, at \$800 (amount to include travel).
- 89. Gordon McPherson appointed to teach a course in aircraft and theory of flight, aircraft engines, instruments, parachutes, in Milwaukee, 12 meetings, beginning June 19, 1940, at \$120.
- 90. Silas McAfee Evans, assistant supervisor extra-mural teaching in medicine for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$875.
- 91. Carl Herman Engler, special field representative, July 1 to December 31, 1940, at \$600.
- 92. A. Elizabeth Grimm, head resident, Chadbourne Hall, for the academic year 1940-41, at \$600 plus board and apartment.
- 93. The following persons appointed to grade correspondence study papers for the fiscal year 1940-41; each to receive the amount indicated:

Ben H. Ashman Lawrence E. Blair mathematics drawing

\$900.00

93. (Continued)

	Gladys L. Borchers	speech	\$ 50.00
	Lauren F. Brush	accounting	150.00
	L. W. Busse	pharmacy	50.00
	Minnie B. Cole	home economics	100.00
	Orville C. Cromer	mechanical engineering	400.00
	Warren Crow	history	450.00
	Ira C. Davis	general science	60.00
	Stephen L. Ely	philosophy	150.00
	Henry L. Ewbank	speech	50.00
	Donald R. Fellows	commerce	50.00
	Emily Graven	home economics	100.00
	C. M. Huffer	astronomy	50.00
	Lloyd W. Jedeka	aeronautics	50.00
	Eva Johnson	health	50.00
	Marion A. Juaire	home economics	50.00
	Arthur Koehler	kiln drying	50.00
	Harold E. Kubly	business administration	
	A. W. Kurth	landscape design	100.00
	Eva Leonard	English	150.00
	John C. McClary	education	75.00
	J. J. McDonald	business law	150.00
	Hazel Manning	home economics	50.00
	A. J. Matthias	plumbing	150.00
	Marjorie T. Morse	history	200.00
	H. D. Orth	drawing	150.00
	Helen M. Patterson	journalism	50.00
	Kenneth G. Shiels	drawing	150.00
	W. B. Taylor	finance	50.00
	A. H. Uhl	pharmacy	100.00
	Clarence Von Eschen	education	100.00. 100.00.
94.	55 school scholarships awarded School for the academic year?		nsin High
95.	18 Regent scholarships awarded	d to pupils of the Wiscor	nsin High

- 95. 18 Regent scholarships awarded to pupils of the Wisconsin High School for the academic year 1940-41.
- G. T. Vander Lugt appointed honorary fellow for the 1940 summer session.
- 97. The following persons appointed fellows in law for the academic year 1940-41, at \$600 each:

Marlin Milton Volz Hugo Armas Ranta Bernard Rozoff Meyer. Harrison I. Anthes, university scholar in chemistry, for the academic year 1940-41, at \$250.

- Joseph Carl Firey, W.A.R.F. scholar in mechanical engineering, for the academic year 1940-41, at \$400.
- The following persons appointed dormitory fellows, women's units, for the academic year 1940-41, to receive board and partial noom rent. to pay \$100 cost of × 100. rent, to pay \$100 each toward room rent:

Esther A. Witherbee Mardelle Mohn Lucille W. House Sue Hadley Jane E. Frank Marion Foster Margaret A. Dana.

- > 101. LaVell M. Henderson, industrial fellow in biochemistry, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$120. Nath Res Comeil Siertoch +
- 102. Harry A. Waisman, industrial fellow in biochemistry, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$20. nat R. C. Levelich - ren ded.
- Stacy R. Randle, industrial fellow in biochemistry, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$250. an Butter Co.
- Herbert H. Beck, industrial fellow in dairy industry, July 1, 1940 × 104. to June 30, 1941, at \$3300. Mis.a. Rec. Id.
 - Herbert A. Sober, industrial fellow in biochemistry, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$120. al fall of a fall of the state of the state
- George M. Briggs, Jr., industrial fellow in biochemistry, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$120. Commercial Solvents.
- Abe E. Axelrod, industrial fellow in biochemistry, July 1, 1940 to June 30, 1941, at \$1920. Rockefeller Farmalations
- Joseph R. Wagner, industrial fellow in biochemistry, fiscal year \times 108. 1940-41, at \$780. Wilson + Cr.
- 109. Lawrence O. Fine, industrial fellow in soils, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$720. am. Patach Bellowship.
- 110. Gilbert L. Terman, industrial fellow in soils, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$120. Born recently
- / lll. Thell A. Bailey, industrial fellow in soils, July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$120. am. Petach Fellowship.

- Margaret Russell, Dorothy Roberts scholar in home economics, Julian academic year 1940-41, at \$175.
 - Marion Sorrenson, Dorothy Roberts scholar in home economics, academic year 1940-41, at \$175.
- Frederick W. Swamer, university scholar in chemistry, academic 114. year 1940-41, at \$250.
 - 115. Major William B. Yancey, assistant professor of military science, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$286.
 - 116. Franklin Bryan Gailey, research assistant in biochemistry, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$720.
 - 117. Joe A. Weybrew, research assistant in botany, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$720.
 - Jack W. Burns, research assistant in botany, for the academic 118. year 1940-41, at \$600.
 - 119. Ralph Swoboda, assistant in genetics, July and August, 1940, at \$150.
 - Burdean Esther Struckmeyer, assistant in horticulture, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$1450.
 - Robert A. McCabe, assistant in wildlife management, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$600.
 - The following persons appointed assistants in agricultural journalism for the academic year 1940-41, at \$500 each:

Robert S. Beeler Zenas H. Beers William B. Ward.

- J. Austin Beard, assistant in soils, summer service 1940, at \$150, and for the academic year 1940-41, at \$600.
- 124. Mary Jane Bakken, assistant in agricultural economics, month of July 1940, at \$75.
- Vernon C. Brink, assistant in agronomy, July 1 to August 15, 1940, at \$90.
- Russell Otto Rosendahl, research assistant in soils, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$720.

- 127. Julius L. Wenstadt, acting county agricultural agent for Dunn County, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$1700 per annum.
- 128. Mannie E. Frey, assistant county agent for Kenosha County from July 1 to August 31, 1940, at \$300.
- 129. Kenneth Eugene Wallin, assistant county agent for Polk County, from July 1 to December 31, 1940, at \$2000 per annum.
- 130. Newell O. Stephenson, assistant county agent for Dunn County, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$1200 per annum.
- 131. Bronislaus V. Slotwinski, assistant county agent for Richland County, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$900 per annum.
- 132. John Reedal, assistant county agent for Ashland and Bayfield Counties, from July 1: to December 31, 1940, at \$840.
- 133. Vernon William Peroutky, assistant county agent for Green and Lafayette Counties, from July 1 to December 31, 1940, at \$900.
- 134. Charles J. McAleavy, assistant county agent for Marathon County, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$1900 per annum.
- 135. Donald Vincent Jensen, assistant county agent for Winnebago County, from July 1 to December 31, 1940, at \$1500 per annum.
- 136. Mildred C. Olson, home agent for Bayfield County, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$1500 per annum.
- 137. Bruce L. Cartter, county club agent for Marinette County, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$1900 per annum.
- 138. Frances E. Baird, cunty club agent for Pierce County, from July 1 to September 1, 1940, at \$100.
- 139. The following persons appointed junior residents in medicine, to receive \$25 a month plus complete maintenance:

Rolf Poser, beginning July 1, 1940. Helen Dickie, beginning August 1, 1940. Stephen Brouwer, beginning August 1, 1940. Ferdinand C. Jacobson, beginning August 15, 1940.

140. R. A. Rose to teach the primary ground school course in the C.A.A. program in Madison, 24 meetings, during the summer of 1940, at \$360.

- G. C. Wilson, to teach ground school course in the C.A.A. program in Madison, 24 meetings, during summer of 1940, at \$360.
- Loyal Durand, Jr., to read correspondence study lessons in 142. geography during July and August 1940 on a fee basis, total not to exceed \$100.
- The following persons appointed to grade correspondence study papers during the fiscal year 1940-41, each to receive the amount indicated for the service rendered:

Helene	Strattman-Thomas	Music	\$150.00
Edwin	B. Petersen	Commerce	200.00
		Music	100.00
		Music	200.00
A. S.		Education	200.00.
	그는 얼마, 그리는 이 그리고 얼마나 되었다. 그 그는 그 그리는 이 모든 그리고 있다고 있다.		

144. Louis W. Busse, storeroom attendant in pharmacy, for July and August 1940, at \$150.

145. Frank V. Beck, industrial fellow in agricultural economics, for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$900. Field feel of the fixed and the final feel of the fixed feel of the fix

J. Duain Moore, industrial fellow in plant pathology, for the month of July 1940, at \$150. Standard ap chem Inc.

The following persons appointed LaVerne Noyes scholars for the 1940 summer session: 147.

Louis P. Bosman Albert Richard Steinfeldt

SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 1. Henry Joseph Niebauer, assistant in student health, appointment changed from 11 to 12 months' basis, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$2,100 for the year.
- medicine,

 2. John Huston, supervisor extra-mural teaching, appointment changed from 2/5 time to 1/5 time for the fiscal year 1940-41, at \$875.
- 3. Frederick L. Caudle, appointed to teach ground school course, C.A.A. program, at Oshkosh and Madison, changed to Oshkosh and Whitewater, 24 class meetings, summer of 1940, no change in salary.
- 4. Gordon McPherson, to teach the ground school course in Milwaukee C.A.A. program, salary increased by \$60, total salary \$180.
- 5. Frederick L. Caudle, appointed to teach the ground school course in Milwaukee, C.A.A. program, salary increased by \$60, total salary \$180.

BUDGET APPROVAL:

1. Approval of the budget for the Milwaukee Seminary fund for the year 1940-41.

PROMOTIONS:

1. Marc James Musser promoted from instructor to assistant professor of neuropsychiatry for three years, beginning July 1, 1940, at \$2,750 (no change in salary).

CONSTRUCTION:

1. Rejection of all bids on home economics practice house that were opened on June 28, 1940; new bids will be taken July 31, 1940.

LEAVES OF ABSENCE

1. Daniel Patrick Hughes, county agricultural agent for Dunn County, July 1 to December 31, 1940, without pay.

Extract from the Will of Sigurd Louis Odegard

SIXTH: I give and bequeath to THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN the sum of Twenty Thousand Dollars (\$20,000); but IN TRUST, however, to keep and maintain said sum as a separate trust to be known as "The Sigurd L. Odegard Memorial Educational Fund". This bequest is given in memory of my parents Olaus P. Odegard and Helle Nilson Odegard.

Said fund shall be invested and re-invested from time to time in such income producing securities as The Regents of the University of Wisconsin shall from time to time select, all of said fund to be continually invested in income producing securities so far as is practical. The net income shall be used for the establishment and maintenance of four scholarships for the benefit of high school graduates of Lincoln County, Wisconsin, under the age of twenty-four years. Each scholarship shall continue for four years, unless terminated by The Regents of the University of Wisconsin prior thereto for misconduct or lack of attention to studies; in which case said Regents shall fill the vacancy. Not more than one scholarship shall be given in any one year. Selection of the high school graduates for said scholarships shall be made according to such rules and regulations as may be established by The Regents of the University of Wisconsin.